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EXHIBIT E

Page 1 of GCC Amendment #1 IFB GCC-FB-015

Pacific Data Systems

185 llipog Drive, HBC Sulte 204A, Tamuning, GU 96913
Main: (671) 300-0200 | Fax: (671) 300-0265 | www.pdeguam.com



GCC

GUAN COMMURITY COLLEGE

Rutlehon Kurnuniddt Guehan
Accredited by the

Western Association of

Schoals and Colleges
Date: May 20, 2010
To: All Prospective Bidders
From: Joleen M. Evau:zge:lﬁtaq Procurement & Inventory Administrator
Subject: Amendment #3 ‘
Bid No: GCC-FB-10-015
Bid Description: Voice Over-fnternet Protocol Telephone System

Attached you will find Amendment #3 with questions from prospective bidders and
responses from GCC.

Please respond with the following information:

Company Name:
Company Address:
Your Name:

Date Acknowledged:

Please respond and acknowledge this amendment #4 immediately or no later than 5:00
p-m., Friday, Mey 21, 2010. -

If you have any questions, piease do not hesitate to ermail:

mateﬂalsmanagement@gga_mcc.edu or call 735-5540 or 5541,

Thank you for participating in this bid.

P.O. Box 23069, Barrigada, Guam 96921 » Phone: [671) 735-5Gp s Fax: (671) 734-5238



I\.r-,,.-‘

Subject: Amendment #3

Bi¢ No: GCC-F8-10-015
Bid Description: Voice Over-Internet Protocol Telephone System

MCV Submission ' .
MCV Question #1: Support for Variety of Telephone Instruments and Unified

Messaging/Communications.
Which specific types and number of telephons instruments are reguired? FPFor
example, telephone instruments come in many variations such Basic,
Executive, Advanced, Digital, BAnalog models...et¢. Pricing is just as
varied with manufacturer/vendor discounts available based on volums for
specific instruments. Providing a recommended range of telephone
instruments to select from will not afford for the lowest pricing.

We expect the vendors to compete with each other in the best interest of the
college and take reasomable risks in providing the lowest possible price on
their proposal regardless of instrument or its model type, even if that
number is just 1. As per the provided amendments detailing GCC's current
phene services billing, phone numbers, and employee listings, vendors'
experience should dictate considerations for reasonable ranges that guide
price estimates per propesed instrument. For example, we are certain not
sveryone in GCC is going to have an advanced executive instyument with video
or audio conferencing capability, but vendors' experience will at least
estimate 1 for the President of the college, and possibly take additional
risks by adjusting that price to a lower and more competitive amount by
estimating Z more for the college's 2 vice presidents. This will not
guarantee that GCC will buy three units, but as a vendor competing with
others, it will be GCC’'s position, trust, or confidence that said vendor
truly considered the best interest of the college by providing the most
lowest or favorable price on the item,

Although GCC currently does not have a 1:1 ratio of phone instruments or
numbers to employeesg, GCC by its optiocn, can replace every existing phone
instrument on campus with the most basic or standard Ip phone. Whether GCC
needs only one {1}, two hundred (200}, or three hundred (300}, the college
only needs one price per item from each vendor to chbiectively evaluate which
vendor offering is the lowest price, or even how much the extended cost
(quantity x unit cost) will be when the decision is made on exactly how many
is needed, what type, and for which employvee,

Leaving the items quantity column blank in the VoIpb price template was done
intentionally to allow vendors to specify their own required numbersg based
on what they are proposing. But for the purpose of clarification on this
specific guestion and quantity-related questions, the final decision and
response is to base all the gquantity numbers tec at least 1, regardless on
whether it is an instrument, a switch, controller, server, or saftware
license, etc. However, wherever quantity must be made higher due the
vendor’'s own proposed sclution’s requirementa, that vendor must specify the
cost of 1 and also indicate how many in total are required along with itcs
total extended cost. In cases of service-related items, where 1 year is
specified ingtead of 1 month, GCC will divide the amcunt by 12 to determine

monthly cost.

Objectively, GCC will use the cost of 1 gquantity as the basis for totaling
overall price evaluation, and will only add the cost of any higher quantity



indicated by the progpective vendor ag a reguired number in its proposed
solution.

MCV Question #2: Ingide Wiring

MCV requests for coples of the conduit communications plans for alil
buildings covered by the scope of this project in the event that new wiring
is reguired te gupport our system recommendation.

GCC Response:

Vendor is responsible for doing a feasibility assessment of the current
network and inside wiring for the potential iinking or integration of the
new VolP gystem they are proposing. The rescent walkthrough conducted with
the vendors showed that certain network backbcne cables are armored/outdoor
types and are over the walkway/hallway concrete canopies, or exterior walls,
and buried underground or without conduits. Some indoor cabling are on
exposed and anchored cable trays and many labs and offices are Ffitted with
both telephone and network/data cabling sharing conduits. Majority of labs
in older buildings have single long runs providing a switch-to-switch
network link between two points. In terms of old or current telephone
installations, many employee offices use no conduits, or conduits were part
of the initial building comstruction. Majority of networked labs and
offices in new buildings have long or homerun cabling to a communications
room. :

It i=s also important to note that GCC does not own or possesg all
communications conduit plans for all buildings covered by the scope of this
project. There are GTA copper wiring, fiber cabling, pedestals on, off, and
near the campus perimeter with lines entering, going througheout, and exiting
from many buildings, and GCC does not entirely manage all traversed areas.
However, all cabling of workstations, servers, switches, routers, ete., and
backbone copper and fiber optic network connections are owned by GCC with
the exception of those directly installed by either GTA or MCV.

GCC recommends that vendors focus on the existing network connections and
not on upcoming building conduit plans, as well as use provided network-
related drawings and diagrams from the amendments. Although it is not
actually information specific to this question, another important and
possibly helpful point is for vendors to know that GCC has more than a 1:1
ratio of networked office computers to employees. Uniess an employes
absolutely refuses to use a computer, it is rare to find anyone here at GCC
without a networked computer assigned or available to them either at their
office, in the classrcom, or in conference roomsg. Note that every coccupied

or currently used office, clagssroom, meeting, and conference room is
connected to the natwork. '

BEnd of MCV Submissicn

 Dimension Systems Inc. Subnmission

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #1: Reference Page 2, Project Description,
“proposal must be sgcalable and able to incorporate up to 300+ lines/end
ugers”,

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #1.1.: Please explain your definition of
lineg and end users?

GCC Response: .
“Lines” is the number of individual IP phone lines each with a unigue

asgigned directory phone number and not an extension. “End Users” is the
aumber of individuals assigned to each of these IP directory phone numbers.

Dimension Systems Inc. Quegtion #1.2.: Are the lines Telco rrunk lines?



GCC Response: ‘
No. The Telco trunk lines required for this bid will be those needed for

the 22 analog POTS lines that use 22 unigue directory phone numbers. Also,
existing lines and their numbers that do not technically meet requirements
for, are not possible of, or are not easily capable of porting or converting
over to the VolIP system environmen:, and as deemed incompatible by the
prospective vendor and its proposed solution, will remain as is.

Dimension Systems Inc. Questicn #1.3.: Are the end users extensions?

GCC ResPonsé:
No. See GCC Response to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #1.1.

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #1.4.: Or are both referring to extensions?
No. See GCC Response to Dimensgion Systems Inc. Question #1.1.

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #2: We are requesting for a current diagram
of each DMARC and what building(s) it provides service to and the exact
nunber of telephones in each building.

GCC Reszponsge:
GCC will provide the employee phone numbers according to their rooms and

building number. Note, however, that some rooms, egpecially c¢lassrcoms,
meeting, and conference rooms have phone numbers assigned to the area and
not to actual employees. Please see also GCC Response te MCV Question #2:

Inside Wiring.

Phones Roomrs

Building Document, do
Document Obiject: 9 Do

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #3: In reference to guestions #2, please
provide exact number of extensions needed in each puilding.

GCC Response:
GCC does not use extension numbers, but will provide the employee’s 7-Digit

phone numbers according to their rocoms and building number,

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #4: Are the current copper infrastructures
(from DMARC to each port) that are being used for telephones/ systems/
Centrex lines, the property of GCC and will they be available to be utilized

as needed?

GCC Responsge :
No. Please see also GUC Response to MCV Question #2: Inside Wiring.

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #5: Are the exiating network switcheas on
your network (which will be used for this project) QOS capable?

GCC Regponse:
Not all the switches in place that can petentially be used for thig project

are confirmed as QoS capable. 7The vendor's feagibility assessment of the
current netwerk and inside wiring for the potential linking or integration
of the new VoIP aystem they are proposing should determine if the axisting
switches will meet their proposed system’s Qo8 technical requirvements. - The
summary list jmmediately below provides a listing of existing network
switchas and their supported level of and for Qo8 at designated areas.

GCC Campus, Known NON-0Q0S Supported Switches



All Switches that support QCS are based on the 3Com products: 3Com 4200
Series Switches & 3Com 4060 Series Switches

D-Wing

D-01 (Edge Switch, 3Com 3300 TM) SYSOps QOS NOT SUPPORTED
D-06 (Edge Switch, 3Com 3300 TM} TechOps QOS NOT SUPPORTED
D-06 {(Edge Switch, 3Com 3300 TM) NetOpa QOS NOT SUPPORTED

A-Wing
Q03 SUPPORTED

C-Wing ,
C-01 {Distribution Switch, 3Com 3300 TM) QUS NOT SUPPORTED

Allied Health
0SS SUPPCRTED

Library
QOS SUPPORTED

Tech Center

QOS SUPPORTED (Exceptions Below)
RM11053 Edge HUB Detected

RM110& Edge HUB Detected

Admin

Q08 SUPPORTED {Exceptions Below)
RM 2214 Edge HUB Detected

RM 2114 Edge HUB Detected

RM 2119 Edge HURB Detected

RM 2103 Edge HUB Detected

RM 2111 XEdge HUB Detected

RM 2234 Edge HUB Detectad

BLDG 100-600C

BLDG 100-500 (Distribution Switch, 3Com 3300 TM) QOS NOT SUPRORTED
RM 104 (BEdge Switch, 3Com 3300 TM) ©J 130-33

RM 205 (BEdge HIB] HUB Detected

Dimension Systems Inc. Question #6: We are requesting for an extension from
the current BID due date of May 26, 2010. We are requesting for an
additional three {3} weskg to review and evaluate information received on
Pre BID conference, Site Visit, and GCC’s responses to vendors cquestions.
Thig will algo allow ug time to feasibly asgess the current voice and data
network and inside wiring for the linking/integrations for the new VOIPD
syatem.

GCC Response:
Because of strict ARRA timelines, it 1s not possible at this time to provide
another extension of the current bid opening date of May 26, 2010.

End of Dimension Systems Inc. Submission

GTA Submission



bt

3

1: Page 1, States: GCC Business VolP Phone System Minimum Technical
Raequirements

“The following specifications define the minimum regquixements for the npew IP
based (VoIP} Phone system that GOC is interested in procuring to support the
main campus in Mangilao and its remote office/classroom operaticns at the
Guam public high schools.

The Scope of work includes:

GCC's Mangilao Campus Buildings, Offices, Classrooms, and Conference Rooms
High school sites below ars optional and are not part of the requirements:
GCC Only Offices/Classrooms at Simon Sanchez High School

GCC Only Offices/Classrooms at Scuthern High School

GCC Only Offices/Classrooms at Okoodo High School

GCC Only COffices/Classroome at George Washington High School

GCC Only Offices/Classrcoms at John F. Kennedy High Schocl

Page 2 '"Project Description” States

“"The system installation will be for the main Mangilao campus. AL a later
time and not required for this bid, the college may optionally deploy the
services, over the internet, to GCC's remote satellite classrooms and

employee officeag.”

“Configuration of phone systems must be for all main campus employees at
their designated office space"

GTA Question #1: Bid specification state that phone gsystem is to be deployed
at Main campus and outlying classrcoms off campus and then further states
Chat phone system is not required to cuter campus. Clarification nesds te be
made on where phone system ig required for thisg bid?

GCC Response:
The phone system installation for this bid is only required for the Mangilac

GCC campus. GCC's offices and classrooma located on the listed public high
schools are opticnal and not part of the bid requirements and its ewvaluation
criteria. It has been clarified, more than once, throughout the bid
specification document that GCC offices and clasarcoms located in the public
high schools are opticnal. Again, vendors are not required to respond or
address configuration of the phone system, or its installation, for GCC'g
offices and classrooms at the local public high schools. The purpose of
including GCC's remote offices and classrooms in thig bid ig purely
informational and will not be part of the evaluation. Note, however, that
“capacity", "scalability® and "inetallation" are separate items and
concepts.  Although, vendors are not required to respond, instalil,
configure, or even address anything related to GCC's offices and classrooms
located at the local public high schools, the proposad gystem's "capacity®
and level or ease of "gealability® to support remote offices or in multisite
deployments will still be part of the evaluation.

2. Page 2 states:
"Proposal must include in the bid all necegsary itemg.®

GTA Question #2: What are the necessary items to include into this proposal?

GCC Response:
Necessary items are all the things the vendor must include in order for the
system to be fully functional at an acceptable optimum level, lezs what GCC
currently has in place that can be used and can work with the vendor-
proposed system solution. For additional information, please see GCC
Regponse to MCV Question #2: Inside Wiring,

3. Page ¢ PFail Over states:
"In the event of total system failure or power failure, the proposed system
must provide for limited analeg phone service at degignated locatien®



GTA Question #3.1.: How is fail over to be provided?

GCC Regponse:

GCC is not to limiting vendors on how to provide failover solutions for
their preposed voip System, but the college expects vendors to at least
ad@ress VoIP failover, VoIP and public data network failover, and VoIP and
privace data netwerk failover. Multiple failover solutions are reguired and
favored over limited, or single cne, for GCC's overall VoIp and unified
communications systems. As stated in the specifications, the failover
System must not have a single point of failure and must have multiple
automatic failover switching or server systems for optimum continuous use
and operation. Also ag stated in the bid specifications, in tha event of a
total system failure or power failure, the proposed system must provide for
limited analog vhone servige at designated locations. This limited
operation must be automatically provided by the system and not regquire GCC
or vendor staff to make any configuration changes to the system or to
endpoints instruments to allow for this capability to work. System muat be
able to autcmatically provide at least 22 IP-to-Analog lines For the main
Mangilao campus in the event of a total system failure.

In the event of a voice access disruption cn the network, the VolP failover
solution should redirect voice traffic to a separate data access line,
without active callg dropping. With either the VoIP and public data failover
or the VoIP and private data failover, if the primary data access {such as
the Internet connection or wide area network) goes down, traffic is expected
to be rapidly rerouted through the VoIP network. The setup must include a
VoIP failover component, so if an interruption oceurs on either the VoIP or
data network, the proposed solution should automatically reroute traffic to
the active network, Again, the failover system should provide at least
95,999% availability and local site survivability with no single point of
failure, and automatically detects potential faults and gelf-corrects by
having in place redundant devices ta ensure maximum availability of
communications. As stated also in the specifications, this system must be
redundant and Tully fault-tolerant and he able to provids 99.3999% uptime
with zero to very minimum loss of business operations.

GTA Question #3.2.: Ia this reference to power faillure, system failure, 1P
handset or transport failure?

GCC Responsgs: .
Failure in this case aye all three {1} Power Failure, 2) System Failure, and

3} Transport Failure) except the IP handset.

GTA Question #3.3.: Define the fajlure.
Faiiure is defined as the entire VoIP system being rendered uselags for
reasons related to, or caused by, total power shutdeown and outages {whether
intentional/planned, or unintentional/unscheduled), total system crashes,
and incapacitated transport systems, etc.. Failure is further defined as
the entire VoIP system being rendered useless or cannot be used for reasons
related to, or caused by, the absence, interruptions, or the inability of
critical mechanisms or componentd to keep the VoIP system functional. These
critical mechanisms o components may include the breakdown, digabled, or
prolonged malfunctioning of failover solutions and related devices,
completely down or drained Uninterruptible Power Scurces (UPS) to critical
points or system components, total local, private, or public network outages

or major cabling line breaks.

Unless it is impacting the majority of end-point devices a* the Zame time
and rendering the entire VoIl dystem useless, failure here does not inciude
single or individually isolated problems with IP handsetes or instruments,
end-user PC malfunctiong, or broken switch ports for single drop lineas, etc,
Continuipg with the previous statement, failure in this case alsc does not
include isolated scenarios that are easily regolvable by vendor customer




service, or first line vendor technical support, and does not impact the
rest ¢f the VoIP system.

4. Page 5/6 Support for Variety of Telephone Instruments and Unified
Messaging/Communicationsg:

IP Hard Phones
IP Soft phones

GTA Question #4.1: GTA would like to acquire the following information:

GTA Question #4.1.a.What is the total amount of IP Phones in each building
required?

GTA Question #4.1.b.What is the total amount of analog handsets are required
and in which building?

GTA Question #4.1.c.: How many WIFI handsets are required?

GTA Question #4.1.d.: How many total trunks does GCC require for PSTN
connection (i.e. PRI, CO Lines, etc)?

GTA Question #4.l1.e.: How many video conferencing units are Required?

GTA Question #4.1.f.: Do all handsets reguire to have VC capabilities?

GCC Response:
Please see GCC Response to MCV Question #1 for responges to GTA gquestions

#4.1.a. to #4.1.%.
For additional information to GTA Question #4.1.d., please gee GCC Response
to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #1.2. Are the lines Telco trunk lines?

"Any special phones sets or telephony arrangement that supports such
features as automatic voip fail-over" to pota”.

GTA Question #4.2: Is this in reference to IP phone Failure? Please
elaborate

GCC Response:
Tt is in regards to the IP Hard FPhone instrument automatically falling back,

switening, or failing over to a POTS line in cage of a total VoIP system
failure. In this apecific guestion, the focus is for the vendor to provide
choices or options of IP Hard phone ingtruments with the capability to
automatically fail cver to POTS line in case of a total VoIP system failure.
For more details please see GCC Response to GTA Question #3.1.: How is fail

over to be provided?

vqeC will select from this 1ist the most appropriate instrument for the
specific GCC Location:

QTE Question #4.3: Is the bid for instruments to be evaluated on
appropriateness or based on bid regulations on price?

GCC Response:
Understanding that this kid, in its entirety and as an “ALL OR NONE®, calls

for a system solution that includes services, communications and computing
infrastructure hardware, software licenses, etc., and not just instruments,
the propoged instrument or instruments, togethar with the entire VoIP systenm
soclution will be based on bid regulations according to the overall price
offering of the entire VoIP system. - This bid is not just for instruments
for a VoIP sclution and it will not be completely evaluated oy determined in
igolation, or without ceonsideration, of the overall total price to be
caleulated. In other words and for example, say Vendor A and Vendor B both
mest all procurement reguirements and vendor qualifications, and each
proposes a VolIP solution that meets all bid specificaticns regquirements and
all services, communicatbions and computing infrastructure hardware, software
1icenses, eto., exclusive of the instruments, end up with exactly the same
price. If Vendor A proposes instruments totaling less than those comparable
instruments proposed by Vendor B, and both sets of instruments meet the



minimum specifications, then objectively, GCC's choice will be in favor of
Vendor A's proposal over Vendor B's.

Additionally, in submitting proposals, note that it is in the best interest
of both the vendor apd the college to be certain that choices of instruments
being provided along with pPrices of each is ag compatible and appropriate to
the vendor's VoIP system. It will be irresponsible, irresponsive, and
outright incomprehensible of any vendor proposing instruments that deo not
work or are not compatible to the vendor's own proposed VoIP gyatem. As for
the appropriateness of what ingstruments, additional phone features, and/or
services such as voicemail, @CC finally procures from the awarded vendor and
distributes to its employees, this call is reserved to GCC as the customer.
For more on this, please see GCO Response to MCV Question #1.

5. Fage 5, Vendor Support for Open System Standards, Interoperability,
Gateways,

GTA Quastion #5: Ie H.323 an acceptable standard for call signaling and call
control?

GCC Response:
Although GCC is not limiting itself to H.323 (ITU) or SIP {IETF) only
protocols, the college will accept either as acceptable standards for call
signaling and call control. Other call signaling and call control protocols
for transmitting multimedia (voice, video, fax and data) traffice JaCross a
network that GCC will accept are algo MGCP (level 3, Bellcore, Cisco,
Nortel), G.729, 802.1p and 802.1qg, RTP, TAPI, JTAPI, eatec,

&. Page 10 Inside wiring states:

“Vendor is responsible for deing a feasibility assessment of the current
network and inside wiring for the potential linking or integration of the
naw VoIF system®

GTA Questicn #6.1.: On what date would GTA be able to perform aggessment
detail and inspection of the current network and the ingide wiring?

GCC Responsa:
Prospective vendors can call GCC to schedule to perform the feasibility

assessment of the current network and inside wiring anytime before and at
least finish any and all required activities 3 days prior to bid cpening
date. Of course, the earlier the schedule ig made, the more time will be
afforded for the vendor to do its feasibility assessment. Any and all
vendor network and inside wiring assessment activities must not hamper GCC's
network operations in any way. Only for the purposes of this bid and if
requested, any and all type of vendor-owned network analysis systems tools
will be allewed to temporarily run on and throughout GCC's network as long
as it does not hamper network activities or rigk jeopardizing installed
networked systeme and rescurces. The phone numbers to call for scheduling
these activities are 735-561%, or 777-5595. Reguest for either Christopher
Camache or Joel Ridgell. Both can also be e-mailed at
christopher.camacho®guamce. edu and jeel.ridgelleguamcc. edu, respectively.
When e-mailing, please do a courtesy copy (CC} to

francisco. camachog@guamec. edu and francisco.e.camacho@gmail .com. If the
aforementioned phones are too busy, you can call Francisco Camacho at 734~

0540, or 777-559%9%6.

"If new inside wiring needs to ke installed to support the Vendor’s
reguirements, it will be the vendor's responsibility to install any wiring®.

GTA Question #6.2.: If it is discovered after the contract is awarded that
the existing cabling infragtructure is "bagd" unugable, whose responsibility
is it to fix the cable?



GCC Responsge:
If it is discovered after the contract is awarded that the cabling

infrastructure is "bad® unusable, the following will be GCC's position:

If cabling infrastructure is referring to those areas installed and owned by
GTA, then those will be GTA's responsibility. If cabling infrastructure is
referring to those areas installed and owned by MCV, then those will be
MCV's responsibility. All other cabling installed and owned by GCC will be
GCC's responsibility. However, all vendors must note that the intended
purpose of their network and inside wiring feasibility assessment of GCC's
Mangilac campus network should have previously "discovered" and confirmed
both actual and potential issues. It will be cvongidered irresponsible and
irresponsive of vendors if they do not report or address both actual and
potential issues findings within their proposal, inclusive of preoviding in
the bid's price template associated costsg to resolve those findings ov
raised issues. In relation to this it was also stated in the specifications
that if new wiring needs to be installed to support the Vendor’s
recommendation, it will be the vendor's respomnsibility £o install any wiring
to support the Vendor’'s VoIP system recommendation. Since it is stated in
the bid specifications and it is known prior to award that Quality of
Service (QoS) must not require network infrastructure upgrades, all vendors
must also be aware that 1f cne vendor's bid proposal does net indicate
issues with existing cabling infrastructure, and its overall proposed cost
ig also less than those with iesues, then it will be in the best interest of
GCC to favor the bid from the vendor without issues. This simply means that
the vendor without issues is submitting a sclution that is more compatible
and responsive to GCC's best interest than the vendor with issues. Unless
the vendcor reporting the issues show the company can resolve all raised
issuees without requiring network infrastructure upgrades, and its overall
cogt of its resolution and the proposed VeolIP sclution happensg to be the
lowest cost; and meets all other bid requirements, then vendor will be
considered more favorably.

7. Page 14 Add-On Options and Subsystems
"Joice Recognition (ASR) Text-to-Speech ({TTS)
GTA Question #7: Elaborate on details that are required.

GCC Responge:

Cn thie part of the kid specifications the college requires for the vendor
Lo summarize on their bid proposal the optionsg and subsgystems offered that
employ advanced speech technologies, including, ag stated on the
specifications, Voice Recognition (ASR, or automatic speech recognition)
subsystem to volcee-enable (front-end} auto-attendant, directory, conference
get-up, and so on, and the different langquages supported. Similarly for
Text-To-Speech (TTS), the college regquires for the vendor to summarize on
their bid proposal options such voice read-out of email, ete. what text
languages can be auto-detected and then read-out. In other werds, for both
ASR and TTS, the college requires a summary only cof what add-on optiocns and
subsystems provided.

8. Page 15 Security

GTA Question #8: On the proposed gystem, is the vendor expected tc provide
information in detail?

GO Response:

The detail required to be provided is basically on what security system the
vendor is going to include on the proposed system to addreas the gecurity
aspect of the VoIP aystem. BAny Firvewall device or Segsion border controller
{SBC} system offered must be accompanied with the requested information as
pointed in the bid specifications in order to allow the college to avaluate

level, type and features of security.



9. Page 24, Evaluation Criteria Summary

GTA ngstion #9.1.: What are the weighted scores given to each item as
specified on "Bvaluation Criteria Summary"?

GCC Response:

Welighted gcoring on each item of the evaluation ¢riteria is not the intended
evaluaticon apprcach of this bid or for this summarized lisre. Objective
overall comparison and analysis between and of all listed items in the
summary and from all submitted proposals will be used by GCC's review
committee to determine the lowesat price offering and most regponsible and
responsive bidder. The evaluation eriteria summary is simply a list with no
particular order or weighted scores, and will only be uged by the raview
committee as a way to focus on what the college has determined and specified
to be the most important items for its potential VoIP system.

GTA Question #9.2.: Tt gtates on item no. 10, "that the Capacity to suppozrt
remote offices in multigite deployments”. However, the regquirement to have
off-site installation of the VOIB phone system is "Optionalr. Therefore, how
can it be an Evaluation Criteria?

GCC Response:
Please see GCC Response to GTA Question #1.

GTA Question #10.: Does GCC require any "Call Centerp® capabilities?

GCC Respense:

Yes, if the “Call Center” capabilities, being referred to here is the
vendor’s support/service capabilities. As stated in the specifications,
remote serviceability, technical support of the entire system and
applications must be provided as a part of the Vendor’s proposal. Vendors
must include with thetir propcsal the cost to support the system for the
first year (12 montha) inclusive of providing on-site service and software
updates when available. The Vendor must algo provide the cost for
continuing support and maintenance for additicnal years. Timeframes shall
be included for response time for customer service and troubleshooting

purpases.

If the “Call Center” capabilities, being referred to here is for the VoIp
system itself, then no. The college just requires for the vendor to
summarize on their bid proposal the Contact Center coptions and subsystens
offered by addressing different Call Center offerings and system capacities,

if available.

GTA Question #11.: At what level, does GCC expect the vendor to provide
support and assistance?

GCC Response:

For the purposes of clarifying level of support and agsiatance, all vendors
must provide a clear and detailed breakdown of all available and necegsary
services and their associated costs to implement, install, and maintain the
VOIP system. Vendors must indicate hourly, monthly recurring, and non-
recurring charges for all types of services to lmplement, install, and
maintain the VoIP system. Cost of technical and end-user aupport services
for 24 hours x 7 days, 365 days a year, with on demand service response

Cime, must also be provided.

GTR Question #12.: How many voicemail accounts should be established for
this project?

GCC Respanse:
Please see GCC Response to GTA Question #4.3.



GTA Question #13.1.: Does GCC have an 802.11 in place?

GCC Response:
GEC does have 802.11 in place but limited right now to wireless Internet

only access at Hotspots throughout the campus.
GTA Question #13.2.: Who is manufacturer?

GCC Response:
Manufacturee include Apple, CISCO, Trend¥et, Link8ys, and NetGear.

GTA Questiorni #13.3.: How many access points are there?

GCC Response: _
GCC’'s MIS manages only a certain number of known access points, but there

are alsoc unknown rogue access points that come and go. The following are
the known access points at their general location:

- OPEN ACCESS WIPI Networks

1. Admin, Rotunda - DSL based,

2. Foundation BLDG, Library - DSL based.
3. D-Wing, Courtyard - DSL based.

4. ABC-Wing, Courtyard - DSL baged.

» Campus Network (wired)} Based WIFI Networks
Tech Center, Office Use Cmly
roject AIM, Office Use Only
Adult Education, Office Use Cnly
Oriminal Justice, Office Use Only
-01, Portable Classroom, Controlled WIFI Access
¢-23, Portable Clagsroom, Controlled WIFI Access
A-28, Experimental Open Access WIFI Network

U R W N P

GTA Question #14.: What type of wiring is in each classroom? Cat 3, Cat 5 or
Cat &

© GCC Regponse:
Cats5, CatSe, and Cat 6 category cabling make up the wiring in c¢lassrooms.

GTA Question #15.: GTA would like Guam Community College to disclose any
employees, family members, ©r any other persons that may have a potential
conflict of interest in the preparation, decigion making or evaluation of
this bid. OTA reference's “The Guam Code Annotated Title Mo, 3: Government
Operaticns, Chapter § Guam Procurement Law, Article 11, Ethics In Publicg
Centracting, Part B, standards of Conduct “ more particular the following
gecticns:

§ 5628, Employee Conflict of Interest

§ 5629. Employee Digclosure Requirements

GTA is requesting a Full Disclosure of all those participating in the
preparation, selection or decision making or evaluation of GCC FB-10-015.

Those who participated in the preparation and recommendation of

gpecifications were:
Membars of the GOC College Technology Committee, namely:



FFEHQiSco Camacho, Patrick Clymer, Michelle Santos, Terry Kuper, John
L}mtiacol Troy Lizama, Marlena Montague, Josephine Arceo, and Brian San
Nicolag

GCQ'e Materials Management employees, namely:
Joleen Bvangeliata, Priscilla Rideb, and Marina Aguilar

Management Information Systems employees, namely:
Joel Ridgell and Christopher Camacho

Those participating in the technical review, evaluation, selection, ang
recomnendation’s committee are:

Joleen Evangelista, Francisco Camacho, Patrick Clymer, Marlena Montague,
Joel Ridgell, Christopher Camacho, angd Josephine Arceo

Those participating in the decision making and approval:
Mary A.Y. Qkada

GCC is hereby requesting, prior to bid opening, that any vendor who finde a
possible conflict of interest of any of the names provided above, especially
for the technieal review, evaluation, selection, and recommendaticn’s
committee, MUST provide the college with a written and delivered, to the
Materials Management Office, a Removal Request of any of the participants,
and MUST provide factual evidence of possible conflict of interest of the
individual or individuals being asked to be removed. Failure to submit the
Removal Request by the vendor will he considered full acceptance of the list
and satisfies the requirements for local Procurement Rules and Regulaticons
pertaining to employee conflict of interest and disclosure requirements.

End of GTA Submission

IT&E Submission
IT&E Question #1.: Must the bid include VoI phene system, fax lines and

internst access together as a whole?

GCC Response:
Yes.

IT&E Question #2.: wWill complete floor plans be provided to show all
existing telephcne locationg and types? If no, will we be afforded another
opportunity for a detail physical assessment of sach office to determine

location and types?.

GCC Response:
Critical project-related floor plans were provided during the walkthrough as

well as on softcopies via e-mailing of amendments.,

Yes, vendors will be afforded another opportunity for a detail physical
asgesament of each office to determine location and types. For more details
on this, please see GCC Responge to GTA Question #6.1.

IT&E Question #3.: Are existinglswitches poR?

GCC Responsa:
No.

IT&E Question #4.: Are existing switches QoS capable?

GCC'Response:
Not all existing switches are QoS capable. Please see also see GOC Response

e Dimension Systems Inc. Question #5.

IT&E Question #5.: Will QoS be implemented by GCC for the veice/data
network? ‘



GCC Response:
Please see CGCC Response to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #5.

Please alse gee GCC Response to GTA Questicn #6.2.

iT&E Question #6.: What is the total number of IP phones required?

GCC Resgponse:
Please see GCC Response to MCV Question #1,

ITeE Question #7.: What is the total number of analocg phones required?

GCC Response:
Please sae GCC Regponse to MCV Question #1.

ITLE Question #8.: Do all current phones have a LAN connection?

GCC Response:
None of the current phones have a LAN connection, but all desktop computers

do.
Please also see GCC Responge t£o MOV Question #2.

IT&E Question #%.: Will GCC provide make and model of all switches and
routers?

GCC Response:
Please see GCC Response to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #%5,

IT&E Question #10.: Are all switches a minimum layer 2 switch?

GCC Response:
Managed switches are at a minimum bLayer 2 (L2} capacity.

IT&E Question #11.: Do all LAN connections support 100 mbpa?

GCC Response:
Yes.

IT&E Question #12.: Will GCC provide Fire Evacuaticn maps for each building,
and per floor?

GCC Regponsea:
The following document provided is from GCC’'s Safety Administrator, Mr. Greg

Manglona.
; !

Campus Evacuation

Map, PDF
Document Object: ap

IT&E Question #13.: Does GCC have a telecommunications layout for tha entire
campus, showing inter-building copper telephone cables and cable sizes
{munber of pairs)?

GCC Response:
No.

IT&E Question #14.: GTA invoice provided on May 13, 2010 appears incomplete
in the summary page. Can we be advisge total number of pages for the invoice

and provided complete invoice?

GCC Response:
The latest GTA billing that was sent out is complete. There iz a troral

of 23 pages. (The 24 page on the PDF file is originally blank.)



IT&E Question #15.: Where will the VoIP telephone system be located if we
provide a centrally located system?

GCC Response:
If vendor is proposing a centrally located system, then the VoIP telephone

gystem will be located in the GCC Server Room.
TT&E Question #16.: Will logical diagrams be provided for all buildings?

GCC Response:
Logical diagrams important for this bid were provided during the walkthrough

and in softcopies via e~mailing of amendments. For more details, see also
GCC Response to MCV Question #2: Inside Wiring and also $CC Response to
Dimension Systems Inc. Question #2.

Currently we were only provided diagrams for Foundation, Allied Health, Wast
Wing Admin Offices, and Staff and Faculty COffice?

IT&E Question #17.: Will switch layouts be provided showing types of ports
and available ports for the buildings not provided in the walk thru on May
13, 2@3107

GCC Response:
ALl edge network switch ports are 100 mbps copper ethernet RJ-45 based.

Uplink perts on most switches may utilize 100 mbpg or 1000 mbps copper
ethernet RJT-45 porte & cabling.

Campue Area Network (CAN) connectivity is provided by multi-mode 62.5 micron
core/125 micren cladding fiber optic cables. This network operates at 1 Cbps
ethernet exclusively, auto-negotiation is not used. Connections are made
with various form factors including but nct limited to LC, $C, & MT-RJ.

Please see GCC Response to MCV Question #2: Inside Wiring, and alse GCC
Response to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #2.

IT&E Question #18.: Will an IP scheme/network layout be provided?

GCC Response:

No.
Please see GCC Regponse to MCV Question #2: Inside Wiring, and alsc GCC

Responge to Dimension Systems Inc. Question #2.

End of IT&E Submission



EXHIBIT F

Revised PDS Bid Form and Worksheet
(aty changes to meet funding)

Pacific Data Systems

185 llipog Drive, HBC Suite 204A, Tamuning, GU 96913
Main: (671) 300-0200 | Fax: (671) 300-0265 | www.pdsguam.com
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STATEMENT ANSWERING ALLEGATIONS OF APPEAL
Pursuantto 2 G.A.R. § 12105(q)

Appellant Pacific Data Systems (hereinafter ‘PDS") filed this Appeal, which
stems out of a previous Appeal to the OPA: OPA-PA-10-005. The OPA-PA-10-005
decision ordered GCC to cancel an award that GCC had made to Teleguam Holdings,
LLC (GTA) since the bidder should have been rejected due to deficiencies in its bid
submissions. PDS argues that GGC was also ordered to make an award to one of the
two remaining bidders; PDS or IT&E. See “Grounds for Appeal” in Appellant's Notice of
Appeal filed June 30, 2011,

GCC asserts that as per the OPA decision in OPA-PA-10-005 issued on January
12, 2011, GCC considered the IFB's remaining bidders in accordance with Guam
Procurement Law and Regulations. In accordance with the OPA decision, GCC
reconsidered the remaining bidders and made the determination that it is in the best
interest of the territory to reject the remaining bids in the IFB pursuant to 2 G.A.R. Div. 4
3115 (h)(A)Xiv) because prices of the remaining bids exceed available funds , it would
not be appropriate to adjust qualities to come within funds and because the supplies
and services are no longer required.

ANALYSIS

1. The price of the remaining bids exceed available funds:

GCC rejected the PDS bid because the bids' price exceeded the available
amount of ARRA funding. The PDS bid of $307,880.50 exceeded the available funds by
over $22,000.00. Pursuant to 2 G.A.R. Div. 4 § 3115 (d)(2)(A)v) the remaining proposal

of PDS exceeded the available funds and if PDS was awarded the contract the cost of

EXHIBIT !



in the Matter of Pacific Data Systems. Docket Number OPA-PA-1 1-011
Agency Report Exhibit C
Page 20of4

switching to the new VolP system would not be worth the cost. Therefore, it is in the
best interest of the territory to reject the PDS bid,

PDS asserts that the PDS bid of $307,880.50 does not exceed the available
funds of $285,000.00 because the cost of the new system should be considered in
combination with the funding used by GCC for its existing telephone services. GCC
rejects the assertion that the total funding available for the new telephone system
should be considered a sum that equals the total of the current funding for the existing
telephone services in combination with the cost of existing telephone services. The new
telephone system would inherently replace the existing telephone services. The
available funds for the new system should be considered independently of the cost of

the current system.

2. It is not appropriate to modify quantities in order to bring the PDS bid within
available funds:

As stated in the April 7, 2011 letter and June 15, 2011 Denial of Protest, GCC
reviewed the remaining bids and determined that modifying quantities would not be
appropriate.

In the present appeal, PDS again submits a reconfiguration of their bid in order to
come within the funding limitations. As authority to modify the quantities in order to
bring their bid within the available funds, PDS cites GCC response to MCV Question #1
in Amendment #3. The GCC response to Question #1 in Amendment #3 states that
"GCC reserves the right to increase or decrease quantity of items anywhere from 0 to

300 according to availability of funds”. As stated in the April 7, 2011 rejection of all bids,
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GCC reviewed the bids and determined that modifying the quantities would not be
appropriate.

While GCC reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of items
according to availability of funds, Amendment 3 does not grant PDS authority fo
unilaterally revise their bid nor does Amendment 3 grant PDS the right to force GCC to
accept the unilaterally revised bid figures it its consideration of whether or not the PDS

bid complied with available funds.

3. The supplies and services are no longer required:

Pursuant to 2 G.A.R. Div. 4 3115 (d)(2)(A)(i) GCC has decided to reject all
bids because the supplies and services are no longer required. As stated in the April 7,
2011 letter, GCC received notice from GSA of a new IFB which would render IFB GCC-
FB-015 redundant.

PDS speculates as to the operational savings which could be provided by a
future GSA telephone service and states that the savings provided by the PDS wouid be
significantly less. There is no concrete justification for this assertion. Therefore,
rejecting this bid is in the best interest of the territory.

In response to GCC's statement that the telephone system and services are no
longer required, PDS cites a memo from the Attorney General's office dated February
16, 2011 as proof that "GCC was in violation of Guam law for its failure to competitively
procure telephone services." (See PDS Appeal Exhibit 7). The February 16, 2011
memorandum, which was addressed to all department and agency heads, requests that
each agency review their telecommunication contracts or purchase orders to ensure

they were issued as result of an invitation to bid within the last four years. The GCC
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rejection does not perpetuate a violation of the competitive procurement requirement,
on the contrary, the rejection of the PDS bid is necessary to bring GCC in compliance
with Guam Procurement law. The PDS bid is not in the best interest of the territory
because it exceeds available funds, it is not appropriate to modify the quantities in order
to bring the bid within available funds, and because the supplies and services are no

longer needed.

CONCLUSION

This Appeal should be dismissed. Therefore, GCC respectfully requests that the
Public Auditor dismiss this Appeal and award all legal and equitable remedies that GCC
may be entitled to as a result.

Respectfully submitted this 18" day of July, 2011

CABOT MANTANONA LLP

Attorney for Guam Community College
By: /M)\

CATRINA M. CAMPANA




